
   

 

 

PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION 
A G E N D A 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION Council Chambers + Virtual Zoom Meeting 
REGULAR MEETING CITY HALL 
THURSDAY, August 27th, 2020 201 S. CORTEZ STREET 
9:00 AM PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
   
 
The following agenda will be considered by the PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION at its 
meeting to be held on August 27th, 2020 , public may attend the meeting through the use of a 
technological device via Zoom teleconferencing. Notice of this meeting is given pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-431.02. 
 
City of Prescott is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom Webinar. 
 
Topic: City of Prescott Planning & Zoning Commission  
Time: August 27th 9:00 AM Arizona 
 
Join Zoom Webinar: 
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81447348419 
 
 
Dial by telephone (if computer audio not available): 
 
1 346 248 7799 or 
1 669 900 6833 or 
1 929 205 6099 
 
Webinar ID: 814 4734 8419 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER- Housekeeping- Please keep your phone on mute unless you are 

speaking in order to minimize background noise. 
 

Please identify yourself each time you speak so that we can record your comments 
in the minutes and properly count motions and votes. 
 

II. ATTENDANCE 

 
III. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

 
1. Approval of the August 13, 2020 meeting minutes 

 
2. AED South Annexation (ANX18-005), Master Plan (MPA18-003) and Rezoning 

(PLN18-019) for properties generally located east of SR 89, south and west of 
Granite Dells Estates and northeast of Watson Lake. Parcels include: 103-01-031N, 
103-04-002D, 103-04-003A, 103-04-003Q, 103-04-004A, 103-04-004C, 103-04-010B, 
103-04-011, 106-01-001, 106-001A, 106-10-001, 106-10-001A. 

 

MEMBERS 
Don Michelman, Chair Greg Lazzell 
Ted Gambogi, Vice Chair George Lee   
Stan Goligoski Butch Tracey 
Thomas Hutchison  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81447348419


 
3. AED North Annexation (ANX18-004), Master Plan (MPA18-002) and Rezoning 

(PLN18-018) for properties generally located east of Prescott Regional Airport and 
north of SR 89A. Parcels: 103-01-031M, 103-01-028D, 103-01-015, 103-01-021G, 
103-01-014 

 
 
IV. STAFF UPDATES 
  
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 
The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Prescott City Hall and on the 
City’s website on ____________ at ___________ in accordance with the statement filed with the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
____________________________________ 
Sarah Siep, City Clerk 
 

THE CITY OF PRESCOTT ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. 
With 72 hours advanced notice, special assistance can be provided for sight and/or hearing-impaired persons at this 
meeting. Reasonable accommodations will be made upon request for persons with disabilities or non-English speaking 
residents. Please call the City Clerk (928) 777-1272 to request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting. 
Prescott TDD number is (928) 445-6811. Additionally, free public relay service is available from Arizona Relay Service at 1-
800-367-8939 and more information at www.azrelay.org. 





 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 2 of 4 
Minutes – August 13, 2020      

construction. Mr. Brown explained that the landscaping along Robin Dr. and State Route 69 would 
be completed prior to construction. The maximum retaining wall height will be 36’ and will be 
‘stepped’ with landscaping planters so as to be more attractive.  

 
Chair Michelman asked whether dark sky lighting compliance would apply; Ms. Dewitt clarified 

that all exterior lighting will be required to comply. Mr. Michelman also asked about two large pipes 
that are currently protruding out of the ground at the site. The applicant stated he was unaware of 
the pipes and said he would look into it. Commissioner Lazzell asked about sewer and water 
connections. Ms. Dewitt explained that infrastructure connections would have to be brought in to the 
site and that the developer would cover the costs.  

 
A nearby resident, Kathy O’Boyle, asked how this project would impact property values and if 

the residents of Diamond Valley would be able to connect to the sewer and water brought to the 
site. Ms. Dewitt did not have information on property values; she deferred utility connection 
questions to the Public Works Department. Ms. O’ Boyle also asked about the level of memory care 
provided at the proposed facility and what the security for those patients will be. Applicant Kevin 
Howard answered that there will be 28 memory care units, which will all be placed at ground level 
with digitally monitored ingress and egress as well as private gardens and atriums for the memory 
care patients to use.  

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Hutchison to approve SITE20-004. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Lazzell and passed unanimously (7-0). 

 
 

3. SUP20-002, Special Use Permit to allow a portion of the proposed Banner Hospital building to be up to 
75 feet in height, where zoning district height allowance is 50 feet by right, and up to 100 feet with a 
Special Use Permit. Property location is 3835 Willow Creek Road. Zoning: BG PAD (Business General 
Planned Area Development). [Property owner:  Prescott Whispering Rock, LLC.  Applicant/Agent:  
Banner Health. APN:  106-02-398, encompassing 20.82 acres]  
 

Planning Manager George Worley presented a brief synopsis of what a Special Use Permit is 
and why it is required for this project. Mr. Worley clarified that the height request is for a maximum 
of 75’, with a current proposed height of 71’, noting the additional 4’ is to accommodate any 
variations that might occur through construction. He also presented an aerial map and proposed 
site plan, which depicts the hospital having two wings. The main hospital wing will remain at 50’ in 
height, while the patient tower is proposed to be 71’ high and will be smaller in area than the main 
wing. Mr. Worley also presented view analysis maps created by the GIS department that took 
nearby properties into account (3000’ foot buffer). He gave two projections: one with a 50’ building 
and one with a 71’ building; the maps were nearly identical in their view sheds of the Dells to the 
east. Commissioner Gambogi asked about the height of the recent, large dormitory built by Embry 
Riddle. Mr. Worley did not have an answer at the time. 

 
Applicant Steve Eiss with Banner Health expressed his gratitude and excitement in bringing this 

project to Prescott. Architect Craig Passey shared a presentation addressing key concerns, 
including the 75’ height proposal and the possible obstruction of views of the Granite Dells for 
nearby residents. Mr. Passey presented a sectional representation of the diagnostics & treatment 
and patient floors of the hospital. He reiterated that there is a small portion of the hospital that 
actually ‘breaches’ the 50’ height (27% of total area at 60’ high and 10% at 71’ high). The additional 
height is needed for the overhead infrastructure of the patient floors and housing of the equipment. 
Mr. Passey explained that the hospital could not be made ‘more horizontal’ as hospitals are very 
deliberate in their design in desiring to minimize distances traveled within the building for more 
efficient patient care. He also presented an at grade elevations exhibit to address the significant 
concern of nearby residents regarding possible view obstruction. The exhibit portrayed that the 



 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 3 of 4 
Minutes – August 13, 2020      

highest point of the hospital is 5191’ whereas the lower peak is 5260’, which is 69’ above the 
highest point of the hospital and 80’ above the highest point of the Pinon Oaks subdivision.  

 
Commissioner Lee asked for clarification on the elevation of the hospital portraying floor 

heights; specifically why they were different heights. Architect Craig Passey clarified that only the 1st 
floor was higher and that the 2nd, 3rd and 4th floors are the same height. Mr. Passey explained that 
the first floor had to be higher as there is significantly more infrastructure needed overhead to 
support the imaging equipment on the first floor. Commissioner Goligoski asked how many patient 
beds would be lost by the ‘removal’ of a floor; Mr. Passey clarified that approximately 36 beds 
would be lost.  

 
Commissioner Lazzell asked Planning Manager George Worley for a history on the annexation 

and rezoning of the subject property. Mr. Worley explained that there was a negotiation specific to 
the annexation to make the area medical and commercial in nature. Commissioner Hutchison 
asked the developer whether he had a ‘viable’ business plan in the event the hospital was only 
allowed to be 50’ high. Applicant Steve Eiss explained that the project would not be viable as it 
wouldn’t have sufficient area for proper inpatient care. Parking would be negatively impacted, as 
well as the ability to transport patients safely across the facility (horizontally vs. vertically). 
Commissioner Goligoski asked about design compatibility with the surrounding area. Mr. Passey 
explained that the building materials would reflect local character as well as utilize a complimentary 
color palette (earth tones). Chair Michelman asked whether the mechanical units needed to be on 
top of the building, as opposed to on the ground outside of the building. Mr. Passey answered that 
putting the equipment on the ground would only increase floor heights and would decrease 
efficiency. 

 
Resident Gerald Winters (1041 Panicum Dr.) asked whether the parking proposed to the south 

could be relocated to the north. Architect Craig Passey explained that parking locations are 
deliberate and that rearranging them would increase patient travel distances. Commissioner Lee 
asked whether moving the patient building to the south and the main hospital to the northwest 
would help resolve the height/Dells view issue. Mr. Passey reiterated that the arrangement of the 
buildings is deliberate in creating maximum efficiency for hospital function and patient care. 
Resident Bonnie Highsmith (915 Grapevine Dr.) asked about the feasibility of building a parking 
garage in order to make more room for the ‘footprint’ of the hospital to expand horizontally. Mr. 
Passey explained that expanding the footprint would again compromise operational efficiency and 
patient safety. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Gambogi to approve SUP20-002. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Hutchison and passed (6-1), with Commissioner Lazzell casting the 
dissenting vote. 
 
Commissioner Lazzell explained that residents nearby (specifically those in Pinon Oaks) 
purchased their homes knowing what was nearby and that the same goes for Banner Hospital, 
asserting that Banner knew the height restrictions in place when they purchased the property so 
the request of additional height seems unfair to existing residents in the area.  

 
 

IV. SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 
 
Director Bryn Stotler announced that there will be a P&Z Commission at the end of the month 
(08/27), which will be the first introduction of the AED annexations. Ms. Stotler explained that 
modifications have been made to Council Chambers to accommodate social distancing and 
COVID-19 safety measures. Commissioners will be able to attend the next P&Z meeting in 
person. 
 



 
Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 4 of 4 
Minutes – August 13, 2020      

V. ADJOURNMENT 
  
     Chair Michelman adjourned the meeting at 11:35 am 
 
 
 
Kaylee Nunez, Recording 
Secretary 

 Don Michelman, Chair 

 





AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-005, MPA18-003 and PLN18-019 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, south of Granite Dells Estates, east of 
SR 89, and northeast of Watson Lake, with associated Master Plan approval and 
Rezoning. This is generally known as AED South. 
 

2 

Planning and Zoning Commission Actions 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will be asked to act on three components of this 
request: 
 
Equivalent zoning designation: Annexations require a confirmation recommendation by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission as to the most appropriate City equivalent zoning to 
the county zoning. This is a technical requirement of annexations under Arizona Revised 
Statutes, and will only create a temporary holding zoning to be replaced by the rezoning that 
accompanies this request. The county currently has the area designated as RCU-2A, R1L-
35 and R1L-18 which are residential zoning districts. The attached county zoning exhibit 
depicts the areas with their zoning. The equivalent City zoning designations are Rural 
Estates 2-acre (RE 2-acre), Single-family 35 (SF-35) and Single-family 18 (SF-18).  
 
Master Plan approval: Master Plans are required by the City Charter for annexations 
greater than 250 acres. A master plan meeting the requirements of the charter has been 
submitted to accompany the annexation. The master plan designates uses in areas in 
greater specificity than is required by the Charter or the Land Development Code (LDC), 
however that specificity makes clear that the proposed rezoning, discussed below, conforms 
very closely to the master plan. A key feature of this master plan is the inclusion of a 
resort/hotel complex. That complex may require a more focused master plan just covering 
the resort complex at the time of its development. The proposed master plan is an exhibit to 
this report.  
 
Rezoning of the property: This rezoning request includes the proposed rezoning of 
various portions of the annexation area. The proposed rezoning map is an exhibit to this 
report. Each separate area is discussed below. 
 
Beginning at the north end of the annexation area, the properties are proposed to be 
Multifamily High density (MF-H) to allow for apartment or condominium development. This 
area is in close proximity to a light industrial business park to the north and to the Peavine 
trail and the SF-6 single-family in Granite Dells Estates to the east. Multifamily 
developments with their larger parking lots and often enhanced landscaping can create 
effective transition or buffers between commercial uses and lower density single-family 
uses. This portion of the annexation property will also experience more aircraft overflights 
due to its alignment and proximity to the airport’s crosswind runway. Multifamily 
developments are proven to be less sensitive to the associated noise from aircraft 
overflights, but housing in this area may be subject to additional sound-proofing standards 
as a result.  
 
South of the proposed multifamily zoning is a central area proposed to be Single-family 6 
(SF-6), a higher intensity single-family zoning district. This zoning allows flexibility to adjust 
lot sizes and to make use of the Planned Area Development (PAD) subdivision option 
allowed by the LDC. A PAD approach to subdivision in this area would allow larger areas of 
open space to be set aside which could be used to buffer home sites from the pedestrians 



AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-005, MPA18-003 and PLN18-019 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, south of Granite Dells Estates, east of 
SR 89, and northeast of Watson Lake, with associated Master Plan approval and 
Rezoning. This is generally known as AED South. 
 

3 

using the Peavine Trail that borders the eastern edge of this section. 
 
South of the SF-6 area and east of the Peavine Trail is an area proposed to be zoned 
Special Planned Communities (SPC). This is an area intended for a resort/hotel complex. 
The SPC district will require a more detailed master plan for the resort complex at the time 
of subdivision platting or prior to development of the site, if it is not to be platted. The area is 
in the edge of the Dells rock outcroppings and will require careful placement of structures to 
achieve the quality resort environment described by the developer. The SPC district can 
accommodate a mix of residential and commercial uses (the resort complex is a commercial 
use) and is the appropriate designation to allow a resort/hotel development. 
 
South of the SF-6 and the SPC areas is a large area proposed to be designated Natural 
Open Space (NOS) and proposed to be given to the City of Prescott. This area 
encompasses the Granite Dells rock outcroppings that have been the focus of most of the 
public comments on the AED annexations. With the Peavine Trail and the intersection with 
the Iron King Trail at the center of the area, it is the best known to the general public 
because of the easy access via those two trails. Much discussion has occurred about the 
size (in acres) of this proposed NOS area. The negotiations leading up to the LOI involved 
agreeing to a specific acreage to be given over to City ownership.  
 
While a great deal of public interest remains in the exact size of the NOS area, it is not an 
action item for the Commission. The proposed open space for the annexation area exceeds 
50% of the total area of the annexation and far exceeds any minimum requirements of the 
LDC. 
 
Access to the annexation area 
 
South of the proposed multifamily zoning is the alignment of the east-west roadway that will 
eventually cross Granite Creek wash and provide a link through Walden Ranch subdivision 
to the west and to SR 89. This roadway already extends to the east into Granite Dells 
Estates and the route through Granite Dells Estates will be the primary access to the AED 
South developments. It is also possible to access AED South through the industrial 
subdivision to the north, providing a secondary, but circuitous route. The future link to the 
west across Granite Creek wash will provide full secondary (or even primary) access from 
SR 89. 
 
Procedure for Larger Annexations (250 acres or larger) 
 
Both AED North and AED South are large enough (larger than 250 acres) to require 
additional processes as set out in Article I, Section 4, of the City Charter. Those 
requirements are commonly known as Prop 400, after the proposition number that enacted 
the requirements. Prop 400 contains several requirements above those required by Arizona 
Revised Statutes. Of the several requirements, the one directly affected by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission actions is a requirement that, following action by the Commission on 
the required master plan, a 60-day public comment period begins. The 60-day period ends 



AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-005, MPA18-003 and PLN18-019 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, south of Granite Dells Estates, east of 
SR 89, and northeast of Watson Lake, with associated Master Plan approval and 
Rezoning. This is generally known as AED South. 
 

4 

with a presentation of public comments to Council prior to their action. Because the 
requirement for the 60-day period is separately applicable to each annexation, and because 
the two annexations are following parallel courses through Planning Commission and 
Council, formal voting on the three components for each annexation will be reserved until 
the Commission is ready to vote on both.  
 
 
Attachments:    
 

1. Aerial vicinity map of both annexations 
2. Vicinity map AED South 
3. County Zoning 
4. Points of vehicular access 
5. Proposed Master Plan  
6. Proposed Rezoning 
7. Applicant Narrative 
8. Airport Impact Zones 
9. Aircraft overflight map 
10. City Charter excerpt 
11. LOI language relating to resort 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommended Actions for AED South     

MOVE to recommend:  

1. Equivalent City of Prescott zoning upon annexation to be Rural Estates 2-acre (RE 
2-acre), Single-family 35 (SF-35) and Single-family 18 (SF-18). 

 
2. Approval of the proposed master plan as submitted. 
 
3. Approval of the proposed rezoning of various portions to NOS, SF-6, SPC and MF-H. 

 

 
 

 



S
TA

TE
 R

O
U

TE
 89

W
IL

LO
W

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

STATE ROUTE 89A
PIONEER PKWY

STATE ROUTE 89A

City Limits

Annexation Areas ®
0 4,0002,000

Feet

AED North and South 
Annexation Areas

AED North

AED South













!"#$%&'()*+,$!,,*-.(/&,$#*01+/2(/&,$
$
!
%345$"#$%$!&'$&%!&'$!(#$!$)*%(*+,!&,'*-./(.'&/!0*$/1%!*+!&+1!&'2.+1!(#$!2/1!3*/4*+%2+!526$%($&17!
"#$!($''&*+!*%!0/&(8!&+1!%.*(&9/$!02'!#*,#$'!1$+%*(:!1$;$/2<6$+(8!=#*-#!=*//!9$!-2+%*%($+(!&+1!
-26<&(*9/$!=*(#!(#$!1$+%*(:!>?@!#&%!&/'$&1:!&<<'2;$1!&(!"#$!A$//%!&+1!3&/1$+!B&'6%7!"*6*+,!
20!1$;$/2<6$+(!*%!.+4+2=+!&(!(#*%!(*6$7!!!
!
6375$!C/%2!/2-&($1!*+!(#$!$)*%(*+,!&,'*-./(.'&/!0*$/1%8!(#*%!&'$&!*%!%/&($1!02'!&!#*,#!1$+%*(:!6./(*D
0&6*/:!%*($7!EB5!*%!&!%(&+1&'1!9.00$'!F2+*+,!.%$1!9$(=$$+!-266$'-*&/!&+1!*+1.%('*&/!F2+*+,!
&+1!%*+,/$!0&6*/:!'$%*1$+(*&/!F2+*+,7!"*6*+,!20!1$;$/2<6$+(!*%!.+4+2=+!&(!(#*%!(*6$7!!
!
%895$!C+(*-*<&($1!(2!9$!&+!G-2D0'*$+1/:!'$%2'(!&+-#2'$1!9:!&!-2'$!9.*/1*+,H%I!J9&%$!-&6<K8!
-2+%*%(*+,!20!.<!(2!LMM!'226%7!"#$!-&%*(&!%(:/$!'226%!&'$!$+;*%*2+$1!(2!9$!J(.-4$1!*+K!(2!(#$!
$)*%(*+,!(2<2,'&<#:8!-'$&(*+,!(#$!/$&%(!&62.+(!20!1*%(.'9&+-$!<2%%*9/$7!!"#$!%*6</$!-2+-$<(!*%!
(2!=2'4!=*(#!(#$!$)*%(*+,!/&+1!02'6%!(2!(#$!6&)*6.6!$)($+(!<2%%*9/$!%2!(#&(!(#$!0*+*%#$1!
<'21.-(!9/$+1%!*+!(2!(#$!/&+1%-&<$!=$//!&+1!*%!(#$'$02'$!&$%(#$(*-&//:!</$&%*+,7!"*6$!20!
1$;$/2<6$+(!*%!.+4+2=+!&(!(#*%!(*6$7!!
!
8&/,($&:$;&1<0$8+*0*+=*5$"#*%!/&+1!%*(%!*+!&+1!&'2.+1!(#$!@2*+(!20!N2-4%8!&+1!*%!</&++$1!(2!9$!
&<<'2)*6&($/:!OPO!&-'$%!20!<.9/*-!2<$+!%<&-$!1$1*-&($1!(2!(#$!>*(:!20!@'$%-2((7!G)&-(!%*F$!&+1!
/2-&(*2+!20!(#$!<.9/*-!2<$+!%<&-$!('&-(H%I!(2!9$!1$($'6*+$1!&+1!6$62'*&/*F$1!*+!(#$!
1$;$/2<6$+(!&,'$$6$+(7!!
!







City of Prescott Charter 

Article I 

Section 4 - Boundaries  

 a. Declaration of Policy:  The people of the City of Prescott believe it is in the best interest of the city to 
establish additional local requirements for annexation to ensure that any future expansion of the city’s 
boundary does not undermine the city’s efforts to attain safe-yield or otherwise threaten the water 
supply of city residents.  

  

 b. The boundaries of the city shall be the boundaries as established at the time this charter takes effect, 
or as such boundaries may be changed thereafter in the manner authorized by law, except that any 
increase in the corporate limits of the City of Prescott by annexation that equals or exceeds two 
hundred fifty (250) acres shall:  1)  require  an  affirmative  vote by  three-fourths of the city  council  by  
“ayes  and  nays”;  2)  require  a public comment  period of no less than sixty (60) days before a vote of 
the city council takes place, which shall begin at the time of a formal vote on   a   master  plan   by  the  
planning  and  zoning  commission;    3)  require a public presentation of the public comments received 
To the city council by city staff; and 4)  include a requirement that all effluent generated by new 
development in the annexed area be used for permanent recharge.  The requirements of this section 
apply not only to single annexations of 250 acres or more, but also to multiple annexations of smaller 
parcels that have been owned by the same person or entity within ten (10) years from the date of the 
proposed annexation.  

  

 c. Severability – If any provision of this measure is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity does not affect other provisions that can be given effect without the invalid provision and 
to this end the provisions of this measure are declared to be severable.  (Adopted November 8, 2005) 



Excerpt from the approved Letter of Intent: 
 
 
THE RESORT 
  
The Resort location (Parcel K and Parcel L on Exhibit A) will be consistent with the City General 
Plan designation. The Resort will be designed/developed to blend into the environment and 
may include uses as a hotel, condo-tel, vacation rental or timeshare. A “floor” or minimum 
transaction privilege tax (“TPT”) and bed tax generated from the resort regardless of type of 
use will be agreed upon by the parties. For example, if all or part of the Resort is used for other 
than a traditional hotel, the parties will agree on an average room occupancy and average room 
rate (adjusted for inflation) per month and AED or its successor (hotel operator) will pay the 
City an amount not less than the TPT and bed tax that would have been generated but for all or 
part of the resort not being used as a traditional hotel. The Resort will be entitled to an at-grade 
crossing over and across the Peavine Trail, subject to topographic and safety considerations, at 
a location of the City’s choosing between where Parcels H and K on Exhibit A adjoin the Peavine 
Trail to allow for a grand entrance to the Resort on AED land.   



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMO 

MEETING DATE: August 27, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-004, MPA18-002 and PLN18-018 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, north of SR89A and east of the airport, 
with associated Master Plan approval and Rezoning. This is generally known as AED 
North . 

Approved By: 
Director: Bryn Stotler 

Planning Manager: George Worley 

Community Planner: 

Item Summary 

This is a proposed annexation, master plan and rezoning of approximately 1656 acres of 
land immediately east of the airport and north of State Route 89A belonging to Arizona 
Eco Development (AED). The area is large enough to require the extended process 
created by Proposition 400 and enacted into the City Charter, Article I, Section 4. 

A request to annex lands totaling approximately 866 acres east of State Route 89 and 
south of Granite Dells Estates, also owned by AED, and known as AED South, has 
similar components and will parallel this request through Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Council hearings. 

Background 

AED submitted applications for the two annexations and their accompanying master plans 
and rezoning requests in August 2018. At that time, AED and City Management began 
negotiations for a development agreement to cover the two large, but separated, areas. 
Negotiations reached a point where the City and the applicant agreed to a general non
binding Letter of Intent (LOI) in May of this year, which will underpin a comprehensive 
development agreement covering both annexation areas. 

The extensive public participation in the negotiations has been mostly focused on the AED 
South annexation area, specifically the proposed dedication of open space to the city. The 
staff report for AED South will discuss that matter in greater detail. 



AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-004, MPA18-002 and PLN18-018 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, north of SR89A and east of the airport, 
with associated Master Plan approval and Rezoning. This is generally known as AED 
North. 
 

2 

Planning and Zoning Commission Actions 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will be asked to act on three components of this 
request: 
 
Equivalent zoning designation: Annexations require a confirmation recommendation by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission as to the most appropriate City equivalent zoning to 
the existing county zoning. This is a technical requirement of annexations under Arizona 
Revised Statutes, and will only create a temporary holding zoning to be replaced by the 
rezoning that accompanies this request. The county currently has the entire area designated 
as RCU-2A, which is a residential 2-acre zoning district. The only City zoning designation 
equivalent to the county zoning is (RE-2 acre Rural Estate 2-acre).  
 
Master Plan approval: Master Plans are required by the City Charter for annexations 
greater than 250 acres. A master plan meeting the requirements of the charter has been 
submitted to accompany the annexation. The master plan designates uses in areas in 
greater specificity than is required by the Charter or the LDC; however, that specificity 
makes clear that the proposed rezoning, discussed below, conforms very closely with the 
master plan. The proposed master plan is an exhibit to this report.  
 
Rezoning of the property: This rezoning request includes the proposed rezoning of 
various portions of the annexation area. The proposed rezoning map is an exhibit to this 
report. Each separate area is discussed below. 
 
Beginning at the north end of the annexation area, the properties are proposed to be Natural 
Open Space (NOS) where the map indicates “Airport Impact” and “OS”. This area is 
intended to provide buffer for the aircraft using the main runway and with the NOS 
designation, residential and commercial uses will be prohibited. With the large volume of 
overflights in this area, other uses would suffer major noise impacts and the airport would 
lose an important safety buffer. 
 
Closer in to the airport, an Industrial General (IG) designation is proposed for the two areas 
north and south of the City’s wastewater facility and Fann Contracting property. These 
portions of the annexation property should be able to function similarly to the adjacent 
industrial areas already in the city to the west and between them. Industrial uses will be 
subject to FAA limitations and requirements, but will otherwise be better able to function with 
the constant overflight of aircraft nearby. These areas may have street connectivity to the 
existing industrial area or may take access from the east and south through the rest of the 
AED north developments. 
 
East of (and in) the Granite Creek wash, the area is designated NOS, which is appropriate 
because of the significant floodway throughout. Similar to the buffer area at the end of the 
runway, the NOS designation takes into account the limited uses that would be appropriate 
for that land.  
 



AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-004, MPA18-002 and PLN18-018 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, north of SR89A and east of the airport, 
with associated Master Plan approval and Rezoning. This is generally known as AED 
North. 
 

3 

At the southwest corner of the annexation area east of Granite Creek wash there are Mixed 
Use (MU) and Industrial Transition (IT) districts. These districts allow limited commercial and 
light industrial uses and make good buffer districts between heavier uses and residential 
uses. In this case they provide a buffer between the primary residential area of the 
annexation from the gravel mining operation and industrial uses west of Granite Creek. The 
two zones will also allow for typical services such as restaurants, coffee shops and mini-
storage (in the IT district) that are commonly needed near residential developments. 
 
The remaining large area designated “MH Floating” is proposed to be a Single-family (SF-6) 
zoning designation with a manufactured home (MH) overlay. The MH overlay will allow 
manufactured homes in place of site built homes. Planning staff recommends that the large 
MH overlay area be reduced in size and limited to the eastern half of the SF-6 area. Aircraft 
overflight from the airport will contribute higher noise levels in the western half that may not 
be able to be mitigated in manufactured homes as can be accomplished in site built homes 
by inclusion of additional sound suppression insulation methods. The SF-6 zoning will allow 
a wide mix of lot sizes and the flexibility of PAD subdivision designs that can include private 
open space tracts and neighborhood parks. The master plan depicts a general subdivision 
layout very similar to the development already underway in the nearby Granite Dells Estates 
subdivision. As a master plan, that depiction should be thought of as flexible and subject to 
some change. 
 
Access to the annexation area 
 
Access to the areas proposed for annexation is not obvious from the master plan. The 
primary access for all of the residential and much of the commercial and industrial areas will 
occur from the south through property already within the City of Prescott. The Granite Dells 
Parkway interchange on SR89A was designed to facilitate access to both the north and 
south. The south leg of the interchange will take traffic to Granite Dells Estates and later into 
AED South, while the north leg of the interchange will provide access to AED North. The 
interchange was designed to accommodate large traffic volumes and should handle the 
traffic demand until additional access is created from the southeast through a section of land 
not proposed for annexation into Prescott. That land, known as Section 33, is owned by 
AED but will remain in the county or perhaps be annexed into the Town of Prescott Valley at 
some point in the future.  
 
The industrial areas west of Granite Creek wash will likely take access from the adjoining 
industrial subdivisions already within the City adjacent to the airport. 
 
Procedure for Larger Annexations (250 acres or larger) 
 
Both AED North and AED South are large enough (larger than 250 acres) to require 
additional processes as set out in Article I, Section 4, of the City Charter. Those 
requirements are commonly known as Prop 400, after the proposition number that enacted 
the requirements. Prop 400 contains several requirements above those required by Arizona 
Revised Statutes. Of the several requirements, the one directly affected by the Planning and 



AGENDA ITEM: ANX18-004, MPA18-002 and PLN18-018 proposed annexation of 
property belonging to Arizona Eco Development, north of SR89A and east of the airport, 
with associated Master Plan approval and Rezoning. This is generally known as AED 
North. 
 

4 

Zoning Commission actions is a requirement that, following action by the Commission on 
the required master plan, a 60-day public comment period begins. The 60-day period ends 
with a presentation of public comments to the City Council prior to its action. Because the 
requirement for the 60-day period is separately applicable to each annexation, and because 
the two annexations are following parallel courses through Planning Commission and 
Council, formal voting on the three components for each annexation will be reserved until 
the Commission is ready to vote on both.  
 
 
 
Attachments:    
 

1. Aerial vicinity map of both annexations 
2. Vicinity map AED North 
3. County Zoning 
4. Points of vehicular access 
5. Proposed Master Plan  
6. Proposed Rezoning 
7. Applicant Narrative 
8. Airport impact zones 
9. Aircraft overflight map 
10. Prop 400 excerpt from Prescott City Code 

 

 

 

Recommended Actions for AED North     

MOVE to recommend:  

1. Equivalent City of Prescott zoning upon annexation to be Rural Estate 2-acre (RE 2-acre). 

2. Approval of the proposed master plan as submitted. 

3. Approval of the proposed rezoning of various portions to NOS, IG, IT, MU, SF-6 and SF-6 MH. 

 

 
 

 



S
TA

TE
 R

O
U

TE
 89

W
IL

LO
W

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

STATE ROUTE 89A
PIONEER PKWY

STATE ROUTE 89A

City Limits

Annexation Areas ®
0 4,0002,000

Feet

AED North and South 
Annexation Areas

AED North

AED South













!"#$%&'()*'+$!++*,-(.&+$#*/0'.1(.&+$
$
!
23$45&-(.+6"!#$%&!'()'!$'&!*))+!,-'++).!/0(!)+1(2!-)3)-!$04&%+56!7$)1$)(!1$'1!*)!&%1)!*4%-1!
&%+5-)!/'8%-26!0(!8'+4/'914().:!;+1(2!-)3)-!$04&%+5!%&!&08)1$%+5!1$'1!1$)!<%12!0/!=()&9011!+)).&!
80()!1$'+!)3)(!'&!$04&%+5!&4,,-2!%&!(4++%+5!&$0(1!-09'--2!'+.!+'1%0+'--2!'+.!1$)!-'*0(!10!
90+&1(491!+)7!$04&%+5!&109>!%&!'1!'+!'--?1%8)!-07!7%1$!+0!&%5+&!0/!()-%)/:!!@!&%5+%/%9'+1!'804+1!0/!
9',%1'-!%&!*)%+5!%+3)&1).!%+!/'910(2!*4%-1!$04&%+5!'9(0&&!1$)!904+1(2!'&!1$)!8'(>)1!)30-3)&!10!
,(0.49)!8'+4/'914().!$04&%+5!1$'1!%&!9$)',)(!'+.!$%5$)(!A4'-%12!1$'+!&%1)!*4%-1!$08)&:!!@;B!
7%--!*)!0+!1$)!-)'.%+5!).5)!0/!1$)!8'+4/'914().!$04&%+5!()30-41%0+!'&!1$)!908,'+2!7%--!+01!
'99),1!8'+4/'914().!$04&%+5!1$'1!%&!+01!$%5$!A4'-%126!'11('91%3)!')&1$)1%9'--2!'+.!)+)(52!
)//%9%)+1:!!@;BC&!,-'+!704-.!*)!10!)+5%+))(!1$%&!,(0D)91!*)5%++%+5!%+!EF6!GHGF6!'+.!*()'>!5(04+.!
%+!1$)!/%(&1!$'-/!0/!GHGG!
!
278$I.)'-!-09'1%0+!/0(!+)7!,0-%9)!'+.!/%()!&1'1%0+&!10!&)(3)!1$)!5(07%+5!,0,4-'1%0+!%+!'+.!
'(04+.!1$)!J72!KL!'+.!KL@!90((%.0(6!&$04-.!<M=!+)).!+)7!&1'1%0+!-09'1%0+&:!!
!
9:8$N&)!10!*)!.)1)(8%+).:!!
!
9;8$=(%8)!%+.4&1(%'-!-'+.!-09'1).!0//!<0(&'%(!@3)!'+.!O)-3%--):!P-'16!.)3)-0,'*-)!%+.4&1(%'-!&%1)&!
1$'1!7%--!*-)+.!%+!7%1$!1$)!)Q%&1%+5!%+.4&1(%'-!&%1)&!%+!'+.!'(04+.!1$)!'%(,0(1!
!
!.'1&'($9<1-0(8!#$%&!%&!%+!,(),'('1%0+!/0(!1$)!)Q,)91).!)Q,'+&%0+!0/!1$)!=()&9011!@%(,0(16!7$%9$!
7%--!'990880.'1)!1$)!)Q,'+&%0+!0/!1$)!(4+7'2!%8,'91!R0+)&!'&!,()&9(%*).!*2!1$)!P@@:!!
!
%=>8$M,)+!&,'9)!1('91!7%--!(4+!'-0+5!1$)!S('+%1)!<())>!90((%.0(6!7$%9$!7%--!'-&0!%+9-4.)!1$)!()?
'-%5+8)+1!0/!1$)!=)'3%+)!#('%-:!







City of Prescott Charter 

Article I 

Section 4 - Boundaries  

 a. Declaration of Policy:  The people of the City of Prescott believe it is in the best interest of the city to 
establish additional local requirements for annexation to ensure that any future expansion of the city’s 
boundary does not undermine the city’s efforts to attain safe-yield or otherwise threaten the water 
supply of city residents.  

  

 b. The boundaries of the city shall be the boundaries as established at the time this charter takes effect, 
or as such boundaries may be changed thereafter in the manner authorized by law, except that any 
increase in the corporate limits of the City of Prescott by annexation that equals or exceeds two 
hundred fifty (250) acres shall:  1)  require  an  affirmative  vote by  three-fourths of the city  council  by  
“ayes  and  nays”;  2)  require  a public comment  period of no less than sixty (60) days before a vote of 
the city council takes place, which shall begin at the time of a formal vote on   a   master  plan   by  the  
planning  and  zoning  commission;    3)  require a public presentation of the public comments received 
To the city council by city staff; and 4)  include a requirement that all effluent generated by new 
development in the annexed area be used for permanent recharge.  The requirements of this section 
apply not only to single annexations of 250 acres or more, but also to multiple annexations of smaller 
parcels that have been owned by the same person or entity within ten (10) years from the date of the 
proposed annexation.  

  

 c. Severability – If any provision of this measure is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity does not affect other provisions that can be given effect without the invalid provision and 
to this end the provisions of this measure are declared to be severable.  (Adopted November 8, 2005) 


	PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
	5_Master Plan
	6_Zoning Map

